December 22, 2003

Solicitation DE-PS07-04ID14435

NP 2010 New Nuclear Plant Licensing Demonstration Projects 

Appendix B - Questions and Answers 

1. Question:  Is it possible to reference documents and/or designs through the use of Uniform Resource Locators (URLs) in the technical application? 

Answer:  The referencing of documents and/or designs through the use of URLs in the technical application is not allowed. The entire technical application should be stand-alone and abide by the 50-page limit specified in the solicitation in the note in Section II.

2. Question:  Does DOE have an URL where the meaning of “royalties” and “ALWR FOAKE Program” can be found? 

Answer:  The following DOE URL, specifically paragraph b, may be used to obtain the meaning of “royalties”: 

         http://www.ch.doe.gov/insidech/org_offices/occ/IPL/clause/952-9.htm
There is no DOE URL site providing the meaning of “ALWR FOAKE Program” as it applies to royalties, however, if an awardee requires additional information concerning this subject it can be provided during negotiations. 

3. Question:  Does DOE have a definition of the terms: “Design Completion” or “FOAKE”?  Is there a list of documents or deliverables associated with each term? 

Answer:  DOE has not developed a specific definition for “Design Completion” or “FOAKE” for this solicitation.  The proposed projects should identify the full range and scope of activities that a power generation company needs to complete to reach the decision to order a plant and to obtain NRC approval of a COL application.  The power generation companies will define in their proposals the degree of “Design Completion” and “FOAKE” required to accomplish these activities.  Applications should include the list of deliverables and end products associated with the completion of the range of activities that the power generation company is proposing to conduct.

4. Question:  Can a plan be submitted that outlines a phased approach to the proposed project in such a way where, if selected, the first items to be completed on a cost share basis would be: a) the formation of the legal structure that would own the project and thus run the project; b) the evaluation and selection of a plant site; and, c) the selection of the final reactor design from available certified designs?  Or, do all these need to be in place prior to submitting a response? 

Answer: The proposed project plan could outline a phased approach.  DOE is not requiring that these types of activities be pre-decided and in place prior to application submittal.  However, DOE expects that the proposed project plan include these noted activities as part of the scope and that the plan contain adequate information for a proper evaluation to be conducted in accordance with the evaluation criteria specified in the solicitation.  The government cost-share will be focused on the solicitation work scope items.  

5. Question:  The RFP is written to support the development of only one COL; how can a power company or team led by several power companies handle the situation where they want to develop two COLs, but seek NRC approval of only one?  Does this require two separate proposals? 

Answer: If it is the intention of the applicant to only seek a single COL approval from the NRC and the situation described in the question, (i.e., developing two COL applications) is merely a part of the Team’s decision making process, then only one proposal is required.

6. Question:  The solicitation identifies Design Certification as allowable work scope.  Reactor Vendors are already pursuing Design Certification, since it is on a critical path to applying for a COL and starting construction.  Although we would not ask DOE to reimburse those expenses incurred prior to contract signing, we want to include these expenses as valid cost-share from industry.  This seems especially reasonable when considering DOE’s delay in releasing the solicitation.  Please confirm that the Design Certification work already performed will be accepted as cost-share by DOE. 

Answer:  A recipient may charge only allowable costs for reimbursement or cost-sharing that are incurred during the approved funding and pre-award periods associated with a particular award.

7. Question:  Can a consortium be created as a prime applicant just for the purpose of the solicitation?  Would the supplemental documentation be submitted by the consortium or by all of its members?  Do royalties paid to DOE come from the vendor whose design is used in COL/Construction activity, from the consortium, or from its members?  

Answer: Yes, a consortium can be created as a prime applicant just for the purpose of the solicitation as long as it is a legal entity with its own DUNN & Bradstreet number and has its own financial management system (refer to 10CFR600.12). Supplemental documentation would be requested from the prime applicant and the responses would be expected through the prime applicant.  Royalties are to be paid by the vendor/entity who will receive the proceeds of future sales of intellectual property developed under the proposed project. 

8.
Question:  Can a preliminary decision to utilize a DOE laboratory be made prior to award notification and how will DOE approve national laboratory involvement?  How can an applicant include the evaluation of a DOE National Lab site as a potential plant site in the proposal? 

Answer:  The solicitation restricts the proposals from including a National Laboratory as part of the team conducting project activities.  National laboratory participation will be evaluated for approval at the request of the awardee during final award negotiations.  However, use of a site located at a National Laboratory in planned project activities is permitted. The applicant must provide documentation from the National Laboratory that supports that the site may be considered as a potential site for a new nuclear power plant.

9. Question:  The application window runs from December 20, 2003 through December 31, 2004.  Will all available monies/funds be given to the applicants who submit the earliest application rather than to those who submit a better quality proposed plan, but submit their application at a later date?  Will applications get funded depending on their arrival/submittal? 

Answer: The proposals will be evaluated in a standardized manner in accordance with the evaluation criteria specified in the solicitation.  Evaluation of each proposal will be conducted immediately upon receipt.   The award selection will take into account the degree to which the proposed project is expected to help achieve the objectives of the NP 2010 program and available funds. 

10.
Question:  The U.S. Congress resumes sessions in January; will proposal reviews and approvals be held until then, pending Congress’ decision on the Energy Bill? 
Answer:  NO.

11. Question:  Is DOE’s assumption that these applications will involve getting a design through certification or completion of first time engineering?  Are royalties due if the power company chooses a design that it is almost certified/completed or doesn’t need any financial support from DOE? 

Answer: DOE recognizes that a COL can be obtained without necessarily referring to a certified design.  The decision to take a design through design certification has to be made by the proposing team.  The amount of royalties due will depend on the level of investment made by DOE toward development of the intellectual property.

12. Question: What is meant by “2010 time frame” for new plant construction? 

Answer: For the Nuclear Power 2010 program goal, the term “2010 time frame” means as close to the year 2010 as possible.  DOE recognizes that completion of all the activities necessary to build a new plant is likely to occur after 2010 and that the projects awarded through this solicitation are expected to lead to commercial operation of a new nuclear power plant in 2012 at the earliest.

13. Question:  It was mentioned that DOE would retain a government use license on patents or intellectual property.  Would DOE explain that?  How might DOE use such a license? 

Answer: Response to be posted later.

14. Question:  The solicitation identifies that up to $15M in DOE funds might be available in FY 2004.  Can DOE provide any rough estimates of overall DOE funding that might be made available in FY 2005 and subsequent years? 

Answer:  Since Congress decides the appropriations for DOE programs on an annual basis; it is not possible to provide future years’ funding levels. 

15. Question:  Would an architect-engineer have to pay royalties for a specific design of a turbine or any components designed by the project? 

Answer:  This will depend upon how the royalties are structured during negotiations after award. 

16. Question: How does DOE retain a permanent right to use a license for intellectual property since industry has to pay back their investment in the form of royalties? 

Answer:  Response to be posted later.

17.
Question:  What is DOE looking for in the application itself regarding commitments on royalties?   Is DOE expecting the application to lay out what the vendors are proposing, in terms of royalties, or is that issue just going to be left totally to negotiations after award?


Answer:  DOE is not expecting any recommendations in the application on what to do regarding royalties.  The subject would be addressed later in post-award negotiations.  

18.Question:  One of the overheads used during the pre-submission briefing noted that the solicitation was restricted to Gen III+ plants.  Where can we find a description of Gen III+ plants?

Answer:   Gen III+ plants are those which offer incremental advancements over the advanced light water reactor designs certified in the 1990’s by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission and can be deployed in the 2010 timeframe.  Pre-submission briefing did not restrict the solicitation to Gen III+ plants.   Proposals are anticipated, but not required, to be restricted to Gen III+ plants.   
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